
FAIRFIELD CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

FAIRFIELD MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
5350 PLEASANT AVENUE 

FAIRFIELD, OHIO  45014 
 

MONDAY, JANUARY 14, 2013        7:00 PM 
 
 
MAYOR………………………………….RONALD A. D’EPIFANIO   COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…TIM ABBOTT 
COUNCILMEMBER 1ST WARD……….ADAM B. JONES    COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…TIMOTHY M. MEYERS 
COUNCILMEMBER 2ND WARD………JEFFREY L. HOLTEGEL   COUNCILMEMBER AT-LARGE…MICHAEL OLER 
COUNCILMEMBER 3RD WARD………DEBBIE PENNINGTON   CITY MANAGER………………….ARTHUR E. PIZZANO 
COUNCILMEMBER 4TH WARD………TERRY SENGER    CLERK OF COUNCIL…………….ALISHA WILSON 

LAW DIRECTOR………………….JOHN H. CLEMMONS 
 
Guidelines for Citizen Comments: Thank you for your interest and participation in city government.  Fairfield City Council’s Guidelines for Citizen 
Comments describe the rules for addressing City Council. The guidelines are posted in the Council Chambers. 
 
ADA Notice:  The City of Fairfield is pleased to provide accommodations to disabled individuals or groups and encourage full participation in city 
government.  Should special accommodations be required, please contact the Clerk of Council at 867-5383 at least 48 hours in advance of the 
meeting. 

 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Roll Call 
 
4. Agenda Modifications 
 
5. Executive Session Requests 
 
6. Public Hearing(s) 

a) Fire Department presentation – Recognition of 911 call, 5 year old girl 
 
7. Special Presentations and Citizen Comments 
 
8. Mayor/Council Reports 

 
9. Approval of Minutes 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of  December 10, 2012 
 
10. OLD BUSINESS 
 
11.  NEW BUSINESS 

 
(A) COMMUNITY & PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE 

 Debbie Pennington, Chairman; Jeff Holtegel, Vice Chairman, Adam Jones, Member 
 

(1) Simple Motion: Motion confirming the appointment of Mayor Ronald A. D’Epifanio as Fairfield’s 
representative to the Butler County Emergency Management Agency Advisory Council for 2013.  
 

(2) Simple Motion: Motion confirming the appointment of Arvind Kochar as Southwest Quadrant Business 
Representative to the Design Review Committee effective January 14, 2013.  

 
(B) DEVELOPMENT SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 Jeff Holtegel, Chairman; Tim Abbott, Vice Chairman, Tim Meyers, Member 
 

(1) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a Professional Services Contract with Fairfield Chamber 
of Commerce. 

 
• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 



Page 2  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
January 14, 2013 

 
• Ordinance – First Reading 

 
(C) PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

 Mike Oler, Chairman; Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman, Terry Senger, Member 
 
 (1) Ordinance to amend subsection 313.03(c)(1)B of the Traffic Code of Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified 

Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio.  
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(D) PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

 Tim Meyers, Chairman; Mike Oler, Vice Chairman, Tim Abbott, Member 
 

(1) Resolution declaring necessity of repairing sidewalks (including aprons). 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 

 
(2) Resolution declaring intent and necessity of the Seward Road Improvement Project and declaring an 

emergency. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(3) Ordinance to authorize the City Manager to enter into a three (3) year contract with T.R. Gear Landscaping for 

landscaping maintenance. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 

 
(E) FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 

 Tim Abbott, Chairman; Terry Senger, Vice Chairman, Mike Oler, Member 
 

(1) Appropriation Ordinance (Contractual Items) - $226,539 three (3) year contract with T.R. Gear Landscaping. 
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
(2) Appropriation Ordinance (Non-Contractual Items) - $2,200 Portable pH datalogger for Wastewater Division; 

$33,325 X-Ray machine for Municipal Court; $19,833 Seward Road right-of-way acquisition.  
 

• Motion – Read by Title Only (Optional) 
• Ordinance – First Reading 
• Motion – Suspend Second and Third Readings 
• Motion – Adoption 

 
12. Meeting Schedule 

 
Monday, January 28 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 



Page 3  
Agenda 

Regular Meeting 
January 14, 2013 

 
Monday, February 11 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
Monday, February 25 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
13. Executive Session of Council (if needed) 
 
14. Adjournment 



MINUTES  
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL  

DECEMBER 10, 2012  
 
Call to Order  
Mayor Ronald A. D'Epifanio called the Regular Meeting of Council to order at 7:00 PM at the Fairfield 
Municipal Building, 5350 Pleasant Avenue.  
 
Prayer/Pledge of Allegiance  
Councilmember Jones led in prayer and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Roll Call  
Clerk Wilson called the roll of Council. Councilmember Holtegel, Councilmember Pennington, 
Councilmember Senger, Councilmember Abbott, Councilmember Oler, Councilmember Meyers, and 
Councilmember Jones. 
 
Agenda Modifications  
 
Executive Session Requests  
 
Public Hearing(s)  
Proposed 2013 Budget  
The Proposed 2013 Budget Hearing opened at 7:03 PM. Finance Director Mary Hopton explained that 
the overall budget revenue projections are just over $67.8 million, which is an approximately 3% 
increase. The largest revenue source is income tax. Overall budget expenditures are a decrease of 2.1% 
from 2012, at $63.1 million, and based on the current apportionment of the income tax. Debt service for 
2013 is projected at just under $32 million and the AA1 bond rating has been maintained. The projected 
general fund balance at the end of the year is $8.2 million. Councilmember Abbott thanked Ms. Hopton 
and the staff for their hard work on the budget and noted that the bond rating was Council's number 
one goal and it has been maintained. The public hearing closed at 7:07 PM. 
 
Special Presentations and Citizen Comments  
 
Mayor/Council Reports  
Mayor D'Epifanio and Councilmember Senger wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year. 
 
Approval of Minutes  
Regular Meeting Minutes of December 3, 2012  

• The Regular Meeting Minutes of December 3, 2012 were approved as written.  
 

OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35946
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35947
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35948
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35951
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35954
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35955


NEW BUSINESS 
 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE Mike Oler, Chairman;  
Debbie Pennington, Vice Chairman, Terry Senger, Member 

 
Councilmember Oler, seconded by Councilmember Meyers moved to read the following ordinance by 
title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to amend section 335.074 of the Traffic Code of Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified 
Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended an amendment to section 335.074 of the Traffic Code 
of Ordinance No. 166-84, the Codified Ordinances of Fairfield, Ohio. This is based on changes in state 
law. Legislative Action: Councilmember Oler presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
Councilmember Oler, seconded by Councilmember Abbott moved to suspend the rules requiring three 
(3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Oler, seconded by Councilmember 
Pennington moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 112-12. APPROVED 7-0. 
 

FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE Tim Abbott, Chairman; 
 Terry Senger, Vice Chairman, Mike Oler, Member 

 
Councilmember Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Oler moved to read the following two (2) 
ordinances by title only. Motion Carried 7-0. 
 
Ordinance to make estimated appropriations for the expenses and other expenditures of the City of 
Fairfield, Ohio during the period beginning January 1, 2013 and ending December 31, 2013.  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended an ordinance to make estimated appropriations for 
2013. Legislative Action: Councilmember Abbott presented the first reading of this ordinance. 
Councilmember Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Pennington moved to suspend the rules requiring 
three readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember Abbott, seconded by 
Councilmember Oler moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 113-12. APPROVED 7-0. 
 
Appropriation Ordinance (Reconcile Accounts - See Ordinance for details)  
 
Background: City Manager Pizzano recommended an ordinance to reconcile accounts, which is typical 
procedure this time of year to close out the books. Legislative Action: Councilmember Abbott presented 
the first reading of this ordinance. Councilmember Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Jones moved to 
suspend the rules requiring three (3) readings of this ordinance. Motion Carried 7-0. Councilmember 
Abbott, seconded by Councilmember Meyers moved to adopt . Motion Carried 7-0. ORDINANCE NO. 
114-12. APPROVED 6-0. 
 
Meeting Schedule  
Clerk Wilson read the following meeting schedule: 

• Monday, January 14 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
• Monday, January 28 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  
• Monday, February 11 Council-Manager Briefing, 6:00 p.m.; Regular Meeting, 7:00 p.m.  

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35960
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35960
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35966
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35966
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35971
http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35976


 
Executive Session of Council (if needed)  
 
Adjournment  
The Regular Meeting of Council adjourned at 7:12 PM. 
 
 
ATTEST:  

_____________________________    
Clerk of Council  

Date Approved_________________ 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Mayor's Approval 

http://fairfield-city.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=&clip_id=210&meta_id=35981



































































































	Regular Agenda for January 14, 2013
	Regular Meeting Minutes - December 10, 2012
	New Business
	Community & Public Relations Committee -  Simple Motion:  EMA Representative
	Community & Public Relations Committee -  Simple Motion: Design Review Committee 
	Development Services Committee - Fairfield Chamber of Commerce Contract
	Public Safety Committee - Amendment to Traffic Code
	Public Works Committee - Resolution for sidewalk repair
	Public Works Committee - Resolution for Seward Road Improvement Project
	Public Works Committee - Landscaping maintenance contract with T.R. Gear Landscaping
	Finance & Budget Committe - Contractual Appropriations
	Finance & Budget Committee - Non-contractual Appropriations


